COPY

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISS.
CAUSE NO. 2007-CP-01875-COA

FILED

FEB 13 2008

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
SUPREME COURT
COURT OF APPEALS

GARY L. STALLWORTH

APPELLANT

N

E

R

S

U

S

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

RESPONDENT

APPEAL FOR THE CIRCUIT COURT OF HARRISON
COUNTY OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

151 Gary L. Stallworth

GARY L. STALLWORTH #105773

S.M.C.#2, C-2, B-ZONE

P.O BOX 1419

LEAKESVILLE, MS 39451

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISS.

GARY L. STALLWORTH

APPELLANT

vs.

CAUSE NO* 2007-CP-01875-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

RESPONDENT

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

THAT ON OR ABOUT 5-24-02, APPELLANT ROBBED MRS. KAREN MARTE ROBERTS, OF WHICH SHE WAS EMPLOYED AT HOLLYHART TOWN EXPRESS IN BYL-OR, MS. THEREAFTER, APPELLANT WAS INDICTED BY THE GRAND JURY OF THIS SAID COUNTY ON OR ABOUT 5-27-03, ON THE CHARGE OF ROBBERY IN VIOLATION OF MISS. CODE ANN. §§ 97-3-73, AND AS A HABITUALLY OFFENDER UNDER THE MISS. CODE ANN. 99-19-81.

NEVERTHELESS, APPELLANT WAS APPOINTED THE
HON. JAY FOSTER TO REPRESENT HIM.

UPON AFRICE OF TRIAL COUNSEL, APPELLANT
PLED GUILTY TO ROBBERY AND WAS TO RECEIVE
MINIMAL SENTENCE BETWEEN 3 TO 5 YEARS

IN EXCHANGE FOR THE APPELLANT TO ASSIST
THE STATES PROSECUTOR. FINALLY, THE APPELLA-
NT TESTIFIED IN 1 MURDER CASE FOR THE
ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY LARRY BOURG-
TOUS. APPELLANT ALSO GAVE HELPFUL RECORD-
ING STATEMENTS TO LAW ENFORCEMENT AUTHO-
RITIES INVESTIGATING OTHER CRIMES, INCL-
UDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO SOME MURDER
CASE.

FURTHERMORE, APPELLANT TESTIFIED IN THE
CASE OF STATE v. GAY, IN 19004, AND WAS ESSE-
NTIAL TO THE PROSECUTION CASE.

"ALTHOUGH, THE APPELLANT FULFILL HIS PORT-
ION OF THE PLEA AGREEMENT."

HOWEVER, ON OR ABOUT 3-16-04, APPELLANT
BELIEVING TO BE UNDER A PLEA-BARGAIN AGRE-
EMENT, ENTERED A PLEA OF GUILTY TO THE CRIM-
INAL OFFENSE OF "SIMPLE ROBBERY," IN THE
HARRISBURG COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT.

RECORDS WAS ULTIMATELY HEINEL.
WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF COUNSEL,
REQUESTED DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS, APPELLANT
SOUGHT RELIEF BY SUBMITTING A PETITION
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS IN THE CIR-
CUIT COURT OF HARRISON COUNTY IN MS.
THE APPELLANT'S WRIT WAS ULTIMATELY
HEINEL.
THEREAFTER, APPELLANT FILED A NOTICE
OF APPEAL WITH THE STATE COURT ON OR
ABOUT 10-19-07, ALONG WITH A MOTION FOR
LEAVE TO PROCEED IN FORMA PAUPERIS.
HOWEVER, THE APPELLANT WAS GRANTED
LEAVE TO PROCEED WITH HIS APPEAL IN FOR-
MA PAUPERIS ON OR ABOUT 10-29-07.

Argument

Basis of this Brief

This Brief of Appellant's arose from a guilty plea which was based on advice of trial counsel was not voluntary, knowing and intelligently made as required by the constitutions of the United States and the state of Mississippi. Appellants conviction and current incarceration are in violation of its Amendment due process right and the state of Mississippi constitution.

Furthermore, Appellant has a right to rise by way of appeal errors not raised at sentencing or during motion for new trial where the errors affect his fundamental rights. Bush v. State, 667 So. 2d 96, 98 (Miss. 1996). Based on the above premises, this court has jurisdiction to entertain this Brief. Martin v. State, 556 So. 2d 357, 359 (Miss. 1990).

APPELLANTS GUILTY PLEA TO THE CHARGE OF ROBBERY WAS NOT KNOWINGLY AND INTELLIGENTLY MADE DUE TO THE INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF HIS TRIAL COUNSEL.

THE STANFORD OF REVIEW FOR A CLAIM

OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL IS A TWO-PART TEST: THE PETITIONER IS REQUIRED TO PROVE, UNDER THE TOTALITY OF CIRCUMSTANCES, THAT (1) HIS ATTORNEY'S PERFORMANCE WAS DEFICIENT AND (2) THE DEFICIENCY (REPEATED) THE PETITIONER OF FAIR TRIAL OR THAT HE WAS PREJUDICED AS MISSTAFFED, 660 S.D. 961, 965 9MSS. 1985); STRICKLAND II. WASHINGTON, 466 U.S. 668, 687 (1984).

THE BURDEN OF DEMONSTRATING THAT THE TWO-PART CONDITIONS EXIST REST ON THE PETITIONER WHO FACES THE STRONG PRESUMPTION THAT COUNSEL'S PERFORMANCE FALLS WITHIN THE BROAD SPECTRUM OF REASONABLE PROFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE. PEACOCK II, STATE,

783 S.D. 963, 966 (MSS. 2000).

THE APPROPRIATE REMEDY WHERE THE COURT FINDS THAT A COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE IS TO SET ASIDE THE CONVICTION

AND SENTENCE AND ORDER A NEW TRIAL.

Gaston v. State, 817 So.2d 613, 616 (Miss. 2000)

The court before which a post-conv.

action motion is brought has a duty

to reverse where the petitioner recently

been inaccurate or erroneous information

regarding his decision to plead guilty,

although it will not require attorney

to meet impossible standard to foresee

the future trend in the law when

adjusting clients. KENNEDY v. STATE, 711

So.2d 873, 876 (Miss. 1998). A counsel is not

ineffective for failing to accurately

inform the defendant on the position

of the law in adjusting him to plead

guilty when the legal basis of his

advice has not been settled or (settled)

upon at the time. Id. at 876-7

The court is mandated to hold an out-

standing hearing if the guilty plea hear-

ing does not reflect that the petition-

er was advised concerning the rights

of which he allegedly claim ignorance

Roberts v. State, 626 So.2d 747, 751 (Miss. 1993).

A guilty plea is legally involuntary

ANY SUBJECT TO COLLATERAL ATTACK WHERE IT WAS BASED ON THE MISTAKEN ADVICE OF THE COUNSEL. SUCH MISTAKEN ADVICE MAY UPPHOLD THE GUILTY PLEA. MYERS v. STATE, 583 So.2d 174, 177 (Miss. 1991). IN THE WORDS OF THE MISSISSIPPI SUPREME COURT IN MYERS, GUYTON BAKER v. STATE, 358 So.2d 401, 403 (Miss. 1978):

IF, AS ALLEGED, APPELLANTS PLEADED GUILTY UNDER THE MISTAKEN ADVICE THAT THEY COULD BE SUBJECTED TO CAPITAL PUNISHMENT IF CONVICTED AT TRIAL, THIS THEN, IS A FACTOR WHICH MAY MAKE APPROPRIATE A COLLATERAL ATTACK... SUCH ALLEGATION, IF TRUE, INDICATES THAT DEFENDANTS WERE NOT FULLY AWARE OF THE IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR PLEA NOR OF THE TRUE CONSEQUENCE OF A TRIAL BY JURY. SUCH A CIRCUM- STANCE, IF PROPERLY PLEADED AND SUP- PORTED BY SUFFICIENT FACTS MAKES OUT A CASE WHERE RELIEF MAY BE APPROP-

RATE.

<8>

IN THE CASE AT BAR, TURNING PRE-TRIAL
THE APPELLANT (FORMER) ITS TRIAL ATT-
ORNEY JAY FOSTER THAT HE OBTAIN SOME
VALUABLE INFORMATION REGARDING TWO MUR-
DER CASE THAT THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S
OFFICE MAYBE INTEREST IN FOR AN EXCH-
ANGE FOR A PLEA BARGAIN. NEVERTHELESS,
THE APPELLANT EXPLAINED IN SPECIFICALLY

RETAIL REGARDING TO THE TWO MURDER TO
ITS TRIAL ATTORNEY. THEREAFTER, A MEET-
ING WAS CONDUCTED, WHEREAS THE APP-
ELLANT GAVE A TAPE, ET AL STATEMENT
TO THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY OFFICE TO
THE TWO MURDER IN THE PRESENT OF
ITS TRIAL COUNSEL (T.M. JAMES), THE

APPELLANT'S TRIAL ATTORNEY AND THE
DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE CAME TO

TERM WITH A PLEA AGREEMENT, THAT

APPELLANT PLEA GUILTY TO SIMPLE ROBBERY

AND HE WILL RECEIVE THE MATH-
AL SENTENCE BETWEEN 3 TO 5 YEARS IN

EXCHANGE FOR HIS COOPERATION WITH THE
DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE REGARDING TO

THE TWO MURDER.

THREE, THE APPELLANT TESTIFIED IN ONE MURDER CASE FOR THE ASSISTANT ATTORNEY LARRY BOURBON. APPELLANT ALSO GAVE HELPFUL RECORDING STATEMENTS TO LAW ENFORCEMENT WITH OTHERS INVESTIGATING OTHER CRIMES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO SOME MURDER CASE.

FURTHERMORE, APPELLANT TESTIFIED IN THE CASE OF STATE V. GAY, IN 1900, AND WAS ESSENTIAL TO THE PROSECUTORIAL CASE.

(T. 14)

"ALTHOUGH, APPELLANT ~~THE~~ FULL FILLS PORTION OF THE PLEA AGREEMENT."

HOWEVER, ON OR ABOUT 3-16-04, APPELLANT BELIEVING TO BE UNDER A PLEA-BARGAIN AGREEMENT, ENTERED A PLEA OF GUILTY TO THE CRIMINAL OFFENSE OF "SIMPLE ROBBERY" IN THE

HARTSON COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT. (T. 15)

THREE, JUDGE ALVAREZ WAS AWARE THAT

THE APPELLANT (W) ASSISTED THE ATTORNEY

ATTORNEY'S OFFICE, ET AL. BUT PRONOUNCED, NO

RECOMMENDATION WAS MADE BY THE ATTORNEY

(10)

APPELLANT TO A MAXIMUM TERM OF 15 YEARS
IMPRISON AS A HABITUALLY OFFENDER, UNDER
MJS. COE AM. 35 99-19-81, TO BE SERVED) HAS
FOR HIM, IN THE CUSTODY OF THE MJS. COE
PPF DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS (T. 92)

THEREFORE, TRIAL COUNSEL FILE A MOTION
TO RECONSIDER WITHIN MEANS TO CORRECT
ITS INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL

(T. 94, 95)

THE SAYI MOTION TO RECONSIDER WAS

HEARD.

Issue II

THE CIRCUIT COURT (JUDGE ERRORE) IN
ILLEGALLY SENTENCING APPELLANT AS A HABIT-
TUAL OFFENDER UNDER MJS. COE 39-19-81

WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF A PROPER AND
ADEQUATE BYFURCALED SENTENCING HEARING, AS
REQUIRED BY STATE STATUTE, MJS. COE 39-19-81
OF COURT, AND THE MJS. COE 39-19-81 SUPREME COURTS
CASE LAUS, BEFORE APPELLANT'S SENTENCE CAN BE
ENHANCED.

IN SEELEY V. STATE, 451 S.W.2D 13 (MIS. 1984), THE
MIS. SUPREME COURT JUSTICES ESTABLISHED
THAT THE JURY PROCESS REQUESTED FOR EXAMINEMENT
OF SENTENCE UNDER M.C.A. § 99-19-81, WHERE THE
COURT HELD IN (HND), "IN PROSECUTIONS UNDER
M.C.A. § 99-19-81 (SUPP. 1983) A BYFURCATED TRIAL
IS MANDATORY. RULE 6.04 UNIFORM CRIMINAL
RULES OF CIRCUIT COURT PRACTICE (MIS. SUPP.).

A CIRCUIT JUDGE IS TO SERVE AS THE FINAL
OF FACT IN DETERMINING WHETHER THE HABITUAL
OFFENDER PART OF THE JUDGMENT IS EST.
ABOLISHED BY THE REQUESTED DEGREE OF PROOF.
THE STATE HAS THE SAME BURDEN OF PROOF
AS TO THE HABITUAL OFFENDER PORTION OF THE
JUDGMENT AS IT HAS ON THE PRINCIPLE
CHARGE. THE APPELLANT ALSO HAS THE SAME
RIGHT AT BOTH STAGES OF TRIAL. THERE APPE.
ARS TO BE SOME TENANCY TO ROUTINELY ALLOW
THE STATE TO PRODUCE SOME DOCUMENTATION OF
PRIOR OFFENSES AND FOR THE TRIAL COURT TO PER
FUNCTIONALLY FIND THE APPELLANT AN HABITUAL
OFFENDER, THEN ROUTINELY PASS OUT THE SENTENCE

MANIFESTED BY § 99-19-81.

HOWEVER, THERE IS NO DOUBT THAT THE

REQUIREMENT OF A BYFURCATED TRIAL MEANS A FULL TWO PHASE TRIAL PRIOR TO ANY FINDING THAT A APPELLANT IS AN HABITUAL OFFENDER AND SUBJECT TO ENHANCED PUNISHMENT."

THEN IN 1987, THE MISSISSIPPI SUPREME COURT JUSTICES, FOLLOWING IT'S OWN RULING FROM SEELY V. STATE, 451 SO. 2D 913 (MISS. 1984), REVERSED THE SENTENCE IN YOUNG V. STATE, 507 SO. 2D 48 (MISS. 1987), FOR THE CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE'S FAILURE TO HOLD A PROPER AND ADEQUATE BYFURCATED SENTENCING HEARING. THE JUSTICES FOUND THAT THE SENTENCE UNDER M.C.A. § 99-19-81 WAS NOT SUPPORTED BY PROPER EVIDENCE, AND APPELLANT HAD BEEN DENIED HIS RIGHT TO A FULL TWO-PHASE TRIAL, (HEARING). ALSO, IN THE SENTENCING PHASE, A PROPER FOUNDATION WAS NOT LAYED FOR THE ADMISS-ION OF EVIDENCE.

IN YOUNG V. STATE, THE JUSTICES HELD ".... THE TRIAL JUDGE CONSIDERED EVIDENCE NOT PROPERLY BEFORE HIM AND CONDUCTED A SENTENCING HEARING OF INSUFFICIENT SCOPE, AT THE BEGINNING OF THE HEARING, DEFENSE MOVED TO EXCLUDE THE STATE'S DOCUMENTS BECAUSE NO FOUNDATION HAD BEEN LAYED FOR THEM. IN OVERRULING THIS MOTION, (13)

THE TRIAL JUDGE USED LANGUAGE CLEARLY SHOWING THAT HE WAS RELYING ON EVIDENCE INTRODUCED IN THE TRIAL FOR TWO HAYS AND NOT ONLY HIS ATTORNEY ADMITS IT ON NOTICE, BUT THE APPELLANT HIMSELF TESTIFIED UNDER OATH THAT HE WAS IN FACT CONVICTED OF THESE OFFENSES."

"..... CERTAINLY, NO TWO-PHASE TRIAL OCCURRED. THE STATE INTRODUCED THE DOCUMENTS TO PROVE PRIOR CONVICTION AND THAT WAS THAT. THIS IS THE EPITOME OF THE ERROR AGAINST WHICH THE SEELY COURT PROTESTED." (EMPHASIS ADDED).

IN THE CASE AT BAR, THE BIFURCATED TRIAL (HEARING), WAS SO INFIRM THAT IT CAN NOT SURVIVE UNDER MISSISSIPPI SUPREME COURT JUSTICE'S HOLDINGS OF SEELY AND YOUNG.

INDEED, THE TRIAL COURT JUDGE ASKED THE STATE TO PRODUCE THE PEN-PACK, OF THE TWO PRIOR CONVICTIONS, WITHOUT ANY FOUNDATION BEING LAYED BY THE STATE FOR THEIR INTRODUCTION INTO EVIDENCE, NO TESTIMONY WAS GIVEN AS TO WHAT DOCUMENTS WERE CONTAINED WITHIN THE PEN-PACK WHICH THE JUDGE ENTERED AS EVIDENCE, THE JUDGE SIMPLY ACTED

AS PROSECUTOR, OBTAINED THE EVIDENCE HE REQUIRED, THEN REVERTED BACK INTO HIS ROLE AS JUDGE AND DETERMINE THE APPELLANT WAS A HABITUALLY OFFENDER. (T. 3, 4, 5, 6)

ISSUE III

EXCEPTIONAL CIRCUMSTANCE

THE CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE ERRORED IN DENYING THE INTELLIGENT APPELLANT THE REQUEST FOR DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS, IN LIGHT OF HIS ROLE AS ARBITRATOR OF THE APPELLANT'S CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO A FAIR TRIAL. THE DUTY TO ENSURE THE COMPLETE RECORDEATION OF THE CASE ALSO RESTS WITH THE COURT. U.S. v. GARNER, 581 F.2d 481 (5th CIR. 1978), THE TRIAL JUDGE HAS A DUTY TO SEE THAT REPORTEDLY MAKES A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS. AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION, STANDARDS RELATING TO TRIAL JUDGE SECTION 2.5 (1972). SECONDLY, THE MISSISSIPPI SUPREME COURT UNDER ITS SUPERVISORY POWERS HAS DIRECTED THE TRIAL COURTS TO REQUIRE AS A MINIMUM, A RECORDING OF

<15>

ALL FACTS OF A CRIMINAL TRIAL. DORROUGH
N. STATE, 437 S. 2^D 35, 37 (MISS. 1983); THIRDLY,
THERE IS A PRESUMPTION OF PREJUDICE WHICH
ARISES WHEN THE INTELIGENT IS DENIED THE
RIGHT TO A FREE TRANSCRIPT, OF U.S. N. SELWA,
559 F. 2^D 1303, 1306 (5TH CIR. 1977). IN BRETT N.
NORTH CAROLINA, 404 U.S. 226, 227, 90 S. CT 431,
433, 30 L. ED 2^D 400 (1971) THE UNITED STATES
SUPREME COURT HELD THAT, A DEFENDANT WHO
CLAIMS THE RIGHT TO FREE TRANSCRIPT DOES
NOT BEAR THE BURDEN OF PROVING INADEQ-
UATE SUCH ALTERNATIVES AS MAY BE SUGGES-
TED BY THE STATE OR CONTURED UP BY A COURT
U.S. N. BRUMLEY, 520 F. 2^D 1068, 1080 (5TH CIR. 1977);
AND BRETT N. NORTH CAROLINA, 404 U.S. AT 230
(1971): FOURTH, IN THE FISHER N. STATE, 530 S.
2^D 990 (MISS. 1988), THE MISSISSIPPI SUPREME
COURT DISCUSSED A CLAIM THE BRETT REQUER-
ED A TRANSCRIPT OF PRIOR PROCEEDINGS TO
BE PROVIDED WHILE HOLDING THAT THERE IS
NO NEED TO PROVIDE A PRIOR TRANSCRIPT
FROM AN UNRELATED CASE. THE COURT HELD
THAT, THERE CAN BE NO DOUBT THAT THE STATE
MUST PROVIDE AN INTELIGENT WITH A TRANSCR-
<16>

"PT IS NEEDED" FISHER, 530 S. 2D AT 999 (BRETT, 404 U.S. AT 227).

IN THE CASE AT BAR, THE APPELLANT HAS IN FACT SUBMITTED HIS REQUEST FOR DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS TO THE LOWER COURT WITHIN MEANS TO DEVELOPE ON APPEAL THAT HIS TRIAL COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE IN ADVISING HIM TO PLEAD GUILTY. (T. 26, 27, 28), "BUT WAS DENIED".

INDEED, THIS DENIAL BY THE LOWER COURT, MEETS THE CAUSE AND "ACTUAL PERJURY" STANDARDS SET FORTH IN WATKINS - GAT W. STAKES, 433 U.S. 72 (1977).

FINALLY, THE APPELLANT REQUEST THAT THESE CLAIMS BE CONSTRUED UNDER THE "PLAIN ERROR DOCTRINE" AND AS SUCH APPELLANT'S CLAIMS CAN NOT BE PROCEDURALLY BARRED, BUT MUST BE HEARD ON THEIR MERITS. IN GATES W. STATE, 904 S. 2D 216 (MISS. 2005), THE JUSTICES OF THE MISSISSIPPI COURT OF APPEALS HELD; WE DO AGREE THAT APPELLANT HAS THE RIGHT TO BE FREE FROM AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE AND THAT THE PROCEDURAL BARS UNDER THE ACT DO NOT APPLY WHEN THE SENTENCE COMPLAINED ABOUT

<17>

TO ILLEGAL JULY 21, 1993, 731 S.W.2D 601, 603 (P.13)

(MAY 1999).

THE JUSTICES OF THE MISSISSIPPI COURT OF APPEALS IN STATE, FOLLOWING THE ESTABLISHED JUDICIAL PROCESS SET BY THE MISSISSIPPI SUPREME COURT IN JULY 21, 1993, CONCERNING THE PROSECUTORIAL BAR OF THE POST-CONVICTION ACT DOES NOT APPLY TO A CLAIM OF ILLEGAL SENTENCING.

THE MISSISSIPPI SUPREME COURT HAS HELD "THIS COURT FOLLOWS THE DOCTRINE OF 'STARE DECISIS' AND UNDER THIS DOCTRINE WE FOLLOW OUR FORMER DECISIONS, UNLESS SUCH DECISIONS ARE MANIFESTLY WRONG AND MISCHIEVOUS IN THEIR RESULTS" (WESTMORELAND V. STATE, 201 S.W.2D 497, 499 (MAY 1971)). AS SUCH, THE DOCTRINE OF "STARE DECISIS" REQUIRES THIS HONORABLE COURT TO APPLY THE "PLAIN ERROR DOCTRINE" TO THE CLAIMS OF ILLEGAL SENTENCING BY THE TRIAL COURT, AND THE INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AND FOR THE COURT TO RULE ON THE MERITS OF APPELLANT'S CLAIMS WITHOUT APPLYING ANY PROSECUTORIAL BAR.

IF THE COURT WERE TO APPLY THE PROCE-
RAL BARS OF THE POST-COMPLETED ACT TO
APPELLANTS CLAIMS OF ILLEGAL SENTENCING,
IT WOULD CONSTITUTE AN "INDEPENDENT"
CONSTITUTIONAL VIOLATION OF APPELLANTS
RIGHTS TO AUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECT-
ION OF LAW UNDER THE 14TH AMENDMENT
CLAUSE OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

FOOTNOTE: THE SUPREME COURT OF MASSACHUSETTS
HAS REPEATEDLY HELD THAT [WE] WILL
NOT CONSIDER MATTERS WHICH ARE
OUTSIDE THE RECORD AND MUST CON-
TAIN [OURSELVES] TO WHAT ACTUALLY
DOES APPEAR IN THE RECORD. MELBYA
STATE, 688 S. 907, 730 (MASS. 1992).
"WE CAN NOT NEGATE AN ISSUE BASED
ON ASSERTIONS IN THE BRIEFS ALONE;
RATHER, ISSUES MUST BE PROVEN BY
THE RECORD). TH AT 730

DISCUSSION OF LAW

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