IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPCOPY

GARY L. STALLWORTH

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLANT

NO. 2007-CP-1875



VS.

4

۰t+

MAY 1 4 2008 UFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: LAURA H. TEDDER SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL MISSISSIPPI BAR NO

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Stallworth was indicted for robbery on or about May 27, 2003, as an habitual offender pursuant to Section 99-19-81, Miss. Code of 1972, as amended. (C.P. 15) The indictment states that Stallworth was previously convicted of Grand Larceny, a felony, and Burglary of a dwelling, a felony. Stallworth pled guilty to robbery and was sentenced within the statutory limits of the offense for which he pled guilty. There was not sentencing recommendation at the time of the plea. Stallworth is therefore not entitled a new trial as to his sentence.

Stallworth does not meet the requirement of proof for either prong of *Strickland* and therefore contention that he received ineffective assistance of counsel is without merit.

Stallworth was correctly indicted and sentenced as an habitual offender and this issue is without merit. The record is clear that the Trial Court made a specific and uncontradicted finding that Stallworth's record contained two previous felonies for which he received sentences of at least one year. Stallworth does not provide any affidavits or other evidence to support his claim that he was incorrectly sentenced as an habitual offender.

Finally Stallworth's Petition Extraordinary Motion was correctly dismissed by the trial court as untimely filed, if filed as a motion for new trial or motion for reconsideration for sentence or as being without merit pursuant to the Post Conviction Relief Act. It contains no supporting affidavits or other evidence to support its contentions and is not proper under that act.

ARGUMENT

I. Stallworth entered into an open plea agreement and was sentenced within the statutory limits of the offense for which he pled guilty and is therefore not entitled a new trial as to his sentence.

The standard of review for denial of a petition for post conviction collateral relief requires that when reviewing a lower court's decision, the appellate court must not disturb the trial court's factual findings unless they are found to be clearly erroneous. Where questions of law are raised, the standard of review is de novo. *Pace v. State*, 770 So.2d 1052 (Miss.Ct.App. 2000).

Stallworth was indicted for robbery on or about May 27, 2003, as an habitual offender pursuant to Section 99-19-81, Miss. Code of 1972, as amended. (C.P. 15) The indictment states that Stallworth was previously convicted of Grand Larceny, a felony, and Burglary of a dwelling, a felony.

At the sentencing hearing, the trial court admitted the pen-pack into evidence and determined that it established beyond a reasonable doubt that Stallworth was convicted of two previous felonies and sentenced to a year or more in each case, ruling that Stallworth was an habitual offender. The sentencing judge was aware of the Stallworth's cooperation with the prosecution in other case at the time of the sentencing. There was no plea recommendation made at the time of the plea.

Stallworth was sentenced to 15 years to be served day for day. Section 97-3-75 of the Mississippi Code Annotated of 1972, as amended, provides that "[e]very person convicted of robbery shall be punished by imprisonment in the penitentiary for a term of not more than fifteen years. Further, Section 99-19-81 provides taht "[e]very person convicted in this state of a felony

who shall have been convicted twice previously of any felony or federal crime upon charges separately brought and arising out of separate incidents at different times and who shall have been sentenced to separate terms of one (1) year or more in any state and/or federal penal institution, whether in this state or elsewhere, **shall** be sentenced to the maximum term of imprisonments prescribed for such felony and such sentence shall not be reduced or suspended nor shall such person be eligible for parole or probation." [Emphasis added.] Clearly, Stallworth was correctly sentenced according to the indictment for the maximum term for robbery with no reductions or suspensions or eligibility for parole or probation, as mandated by statute. This issue is without merit.

Further, Stallworth fails to support his allegations with the necessary proof. Section 99-39-9 of the Miss. Code Anno., as amended, requires that a motion for post collateral conviction relief must include a specific statement of the facts which are not in the prisoner's knowledge and that the motion shall state how or by whom the facts will be proven. The statute further requires affidavits by witnesses and copies of documents or records that will be offered must be attached to the motion. Stallworth offers no such affidavits, documents or records to prove his claim that an agreement existed. Further, he does not explain why his attorney for the sentencing has not provided such an affidavit that an agreement existed.

Where a petition does not contain affidavits which includes facts and state how or by whom these facts will be proven, said petition does not fully satisfy the requirements of Mississippi Code Annotated section 99-39-9 and is without merit. *Robertson v. State*, 669 So.2d 11, 12-13 (Miss. 1996).

Further, Stallworth's Petition filed September 25, 2007 was correctly treated as a Petition

for Post Conviction Collateral Relief and denied as time barred, since more than three years elapsed between the Stallworth's sentencing and the filing of his Petition.

II. Stallworth does not meet the requirement of proof for either prong of Strickland and therefore contention that he received ineffective assistance of counsel is without merit.

Stallworth claims that his counsel was ineffective for failing to enforce a plea agreement with the District Attorney guaranteeing a recommendation of 3-5 years in exchange for Stallworth's cooperation in regard to two murder investigations. (Appellant's Brief, P. 9) In order for Stallworth to prevail in his claim of ineffective assistance of counsel he must first show that his "counsel's performance was deficient." Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S.Ct. 2052. Second, he must show that the "deficient performance prejudiced the defense." Id. This requires a showing that "counsel's errors were so serious as to deprive the defendant of a fair trial, a trial whose result is reliable." Id. In regards to this second prong, Coleman must show that there is a "reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different." Strickland, 466 U.S. at 694, 104 S.Ct. 2052; see Leatherwood v. State, 473 So.2d 964, 968 (Miss.1985); Stringer v. State, 454 So.2d 468, 477 (Miss.1984). Stallworth must prove both of these elements in order to succeed on his claim. Id. Each case is decided based on the totality of the circumstances, that is, by looking to the evidence in the entire record. McQuarter v. State, 574 So.2d 685, 687 (Miss.1990); Stringer, 454 So.2d at 476. The standard of performance used is whether counsel provided "reasonably effective assistance." Leatherwood, 473 So.2d at 968. "There is a strong presumption that counsel's conduct is within the wide range of reasonable professional conduct." Id. at 969.

The court, in Jefferson v. State, 556 So.2d 1016, 1019 (Miss.1989), stated that the law is

well settled that when properly entered and accepted, "a guilty plea operates to waive the defendant's privilege against self-incrimination, the right to confront and cross-examine the prosecution's witnesses, the right to a jury trial and the right that the prosecution prove each element of the offense beyond a reasonable doubt." *Gunter v. State*, 841 So.2d 195 (Miss. Ct. App. 2003).

However, since he presents no proof other than his own statement. Stallworth cannot make a valid claim for ineffective assistance of counsel if the only proof he has concerning deficient performance is his own statement. *Vielee v. State*, 653 So.2d 920, 922 (Miss. 1995). Stallworth has not done so and has thus failed to overcome the presumption that his counsel was effective and further failed to demonstrate with particularity how his defense was prejudiced due to ineffective assistance of counsel. Therefore, this allegation is without merit.

III. Stallworth was correctly indicted and sentenced as an habitual offender and this issue is without merit.

Stallworth was indicted for robbery on or about May 27, 2003, as an habitual offender pursuant to Section 99-19-81, Miss. Code of 1972, as amended. (C.P. 15) The indictment states that Stallworth was previously convicted of Grand Larceny, a felony, and Burglary of a dwelling, a felony.

Sections 97-17-41 and 97-17-42, Miss. Code of 1972, as amended, provide that the felony of Grand Larceny is punishable by imprisonment in the penitentiary for not a term not exceeding ten years.

Section 97-17-23, Miss. Code of 1972, as amended, provides that "[e]very person who shall be convicted of breaking and entering the dwelling house or inner door of such dwelling house of another, whether armed with a deadly weapon or not, and whether there shall be at the time some human being in such dwelling house or not, with intent to commit some crime therein, shall be punished by imprisonment in the Penitentiary not less than three (3) years nor more than twenty-five (25) years."

At the sentencing hearing, the trial court admitted the pen-pack into evidence without objection from any party and determined that it established beyond a reasonable doubt that Stallworth was convicted of two previous felonies and sentenced to a year or more in each case. The Court ruled that Stallworth was an habitual offender. There was no objection at the time of this ruling. There is no indication in the record, and no proof offered by Stallworth that he was not correctly indicted and sentenced as an habitual offender. This issue is without merit.

Finally, to the extent that Stallworth seeks habeas corpus relief, such relief is not available in this case. Section 11-42-1 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 Annotated, as amended, provides that [t]he writ of habeas corpus shall extend to all cases of illegal confinement or detention by which any person is deprived of his liberty. Further, Section 11-43-3 states that "[t]his chapter shall not apply to any collateral relief sought by any person following his conviction of a crime. Such relief shall be governed by the procedures prescribed in the Mississippi Uniform Post-Conviction Relief Act. Because Stallworth does not allege any illegal confinement, but merely seeks to have his sentence reduced, his complaints are not proper habeas corpus matters. Therefore, the trial court correctly treated Stallworth's pleadings in the lower court as petitions pursuant to the Post Conviction Collateral Relief Act.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Post Conviction Collateral Relief Act, Stallworth's Petition is untimely filed. Section 99-39-5 of the Mississippi Code Annotated of provides:

(2) A motion for relief under this article shall be made . . . in the case of a guilty plea, within three (3) years after the entry of the

judgment of conviction. Excepted from this three-year statute of limitation are those cases in which the prisoner can demonstrate that there has been an intervening decision of the Supreme Court of either State of Mississippi or the United States which would have actually adversely affected the outcome of his conviction or sentence, or that he has evidence, not reasonably discoverable at the time of trial, which is of such nature that it would be practically conclusive that had such been introduced at trial it would have caused a different result in the conviction or sentence.

Further, Stallworth's Petition is time barred, since the was filed on September 5, 2007,

more than three years after the entry of the judgment of conviction (sentence) of which he complains (March 16, 2004). He does not submit any intervening decision on any issue. Further, there was no evidence submitted to the trial court which was not reasonably discoverable at the time of his plea or sentencing hearing.

All issues and assignments of error submitted by Stallworth are without merit and should be dismissed.

CONCLUSION

The issues raised in the instant appeal from the trial court's denial of post conviction relief are without merit and the trial court's ruling should be affirmed.